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1. Acronyme & Glossary of Terms

HELB

ICPAK

IPSAS

K}IP

NHIF

NSSF

PAYE

PFM

PSASB

TvC

Fiduciary Management

ryETA
GC

Higher Education loans Board

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kcnya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

Kisii National Polytechnic

National Hospital Insurance Fund

National Social Security Fund

Pay As You Earn

Public Finance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Technical Vocational College

Key management personnel who have frnancial responsibility in the entity

Technical and Vocational Education and Training Authority

Goveming Council

.I
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2. Key Entity Inform.tion and Manegement

(a) Backgroundinformation

The Kisii National Polytechnic was founded on l9th December l97l as Gusii Institute of
Technology in Kisii town at a meeting of Abagusii Leaders' conference attended by
representative fiom all walks of life.
It was registered in 1972 under the Education Act cap 212 of Laws of Kenya with the

objective of providing technical education and training for youths. The initial courses were

secretarial and Building technology. Since then, more courses have been introduced and

currently KNP offers a total of seventy-four at Artisan, certificate, Diploma and Higher
Diploma Levels.
The institution was moved from St. Vincent Centre in Kisii town, where it was initially
housed, to the current site in 1980 where it occupies 16.95 hectares of land. The first
buildings to be put up were two workshops (wood work technology and mechanical

engineering), a typing pool, Dining hall and a hostel. In 1983 with the new facilities in place

other new courses were added to the curriculum. The rest of this were courses in building
trades which included carpentry and joinery, plumbing, masonry and electrical installation
The institution has continued to $ow thanks to Donor assistance from various bodies and

organisations.

The institution was elevated to a national polyechnic in May 2016 through Legal Notice
No.93.
The Kisii National pollechnic currently offers various faculties namely Business studies,

Computer Studies, Mechanical Engineering, Electrical and Electronics Engineering,

Building and Civil
Engineering, Communication and development, applied sciences, Health sciences and

Agricultural and Environmental Sciences

Cunently the institution boasts of a student population of 8,231 students, 252 trainers and

l5lNon Trainers fiom all over the country. The institution has also expanded its

infrastructures like completion of modern library, Mechanical, l.M S and Electrical
workshop. Currently working on third and final phase ofmodem Tuition complex at a cost

of over 140,000,000.

The Kisii National Polyechnic is a hub ofactivities where people work together 1o transform

dreams into skills for life. We look forward to taking the polyechnic to the higher level of
training individual in order to further their goals and to benefit Kenya.

(b) Principal Activities
The mandate ofthe polytechnic is to develop an institution with excellence in teaching,

Training Scholarship, Entrepreneurship, Research, Consultancy, Community services and

products with emphasis on technology, its development, impact and application within and

outside Kenya.

Vision
To be a preferred training institution, for technical and vocational skills development
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Mission
To develop highly qualified, globally competitive and imovative human resource by
providing quality training, applied research & extension and entrepreneurship skills that are
responsive to market demands.

(c) Key Management

The entity's day-to-day management is under the following key organs
. Goveming Council.
o Accountingofficer/ChiefPrincipal
. Top management team
. Heads of Departments

(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June
2023 and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

I
Chief

Council
Principal/Secretary Goveming

Mr. Daniel Nyariki

2 Deputy principal Administration Ms Mabel Wanjala

3 Deputy principal Academics Dr. George Were

4 Registrar Administration Mr. Erick C)mundi

5 Registrar Academics Ms Beatrice Nyareki

6 Dean ofstudents Mr Bironga Metobo

7 Head ofFinance CPA Beatrice Kegwaro

8 Head of Procurement Mr Joshua Okinl
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Key Entity Information rnd Mansgement (Continued)

(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

Finance & General Purposes Committee Activities

The Committee shall exercise all the powers of GC in financial matters except in relation to items which
are reserved to GC, on which the Committee shall advise the GC.
Terms of Reference: The role of the Committee shall be to monitor the financial status of the lnstitute on
behalf of the GC. In addition to advising GC on those matters referred to above, the Committee's
responsibilities shall include:

(l) To monitor and facilitate the implementation of the Institute's strategy with regard to

financial matters;
(i) To receive reports from the Accounting Officer ensuring that ensuring that financial

statements are understandable, transparenl and reliable;
(ii) To consider the adequacy of the Institute estate and proposals for its maintenance and

development, including opportunrties to dispose ofand acquire new projects;

(iii) To determine the fees and charges made for the institute services and facilities;
(iv) To supervise the financial administration ofthe Institute and make recommendations to GC

where appropriatei
(v) To supervise the arrangements for safeguarding the Institute's assetsi

(vi) To ensure the proper financial evaluation and control ofprojects;
(vii) To supervise the arrangements for investing the Institute's funds, including monitoring the

performance of investments;
(viii) To ensure the appropriate exploitation of the Institute's intellectual property;
(ix) To make recommendations to GC on the financing ofprojects; and

(x) To supervise the effective and efficient procurement and use ofresources in accordance with
the objectives ofthe Instinrte.

Table l. Composition of Finance & General Purposes Committee

Audlt Risk and Governance Committee Activities

The Committee shall exercise all the powers of GC in audit, govemance and risk management matters
except in relation to items which are reserved to GC, on which the Committee shall advise the GC. The

Committee responsibilities shall include:
(i) Ensuring the risk management process is comprehensive and on-going, rather than partial and

periodic;
(ii) Helping achieve an organization wide commitment to strong and effective internal controls,

emanating from the tone at the top;

I Eng Andrew Ngeno Chairperson

Ps Representative) Mr Peter Kamau

MemberJ Mr Obadiah Okeri

Secretary5 Mr Daniel Nyariki

vl
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(iii) Reviewing corporate policies relating to compliance with laws and regulations, ethics, conflicts
of interest, and the investigation ofmisconduct and fraud;

(iv) Reviewing current and pending corporate govemance related litigation or regulatory
proceedings to which the institution is party;

(v) Continually communicating with senior management regarding status, progress, and new
developments, as well as problematic areas;

(vi) Ensuring the intemal auditor's access to the audit committee, encouraging communication
beyond scheduled committee meetings;

(vii) Reviewing intemal audit plans, reports and significant findings; and
(viii) Establishing a direct reporting relationship with the extemal auditors.

Table 2. Composition of Audit and Risk Committce

Educadon, Rerearch end Human Resource Committee Activities

The Committee shall exercise all the powers ofGC in Education, Research and Human Resource matters
except in relation to items which are reserved to GC, on which the Committee shall advise the GC. The
Committee responsibilities shall include:

(i) Driving the Institute's research agenda in line with the country's Vision;
(ii) Encourage research culture in the institute;
(iii) Institutionalize networking, collaboration research and outreach in the Institute;
(iv) Encourage innovation and handle issues to do with intellectual property rights;
(v) Ensure dissemination ofresearch findings;
(vi) Advises the Board of Govemors on the strategic direction of the Instih.lte's academic

activities, academic risks and the overall effectiveness of services in support ofthe academic
endeavour;

(vii) Responsible for providing assurance to the Board of Govemors on the effectiveness of the
lnstitute's academic govemance arrangements, the student experience, and setting and
maintaining standards;

(viii) Support the development of HR policies, guidelines, procedures, regulations and standard;
and

(ix) Monitor labour administration in the Institute.

Teble 3. Composition of Educrtion, Research and Human Resource Committee

I Ms. Rose Sharon Sabato Chairperson
3 Mr Peter Kamau entative !"ff-MemberMember Ps

4 CPA Callfax Nyanyuki Secretary

I Mr Stephen Marwa Muniko Chairperson

2 Eng Andrew Ngeno Member

vlt
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Human Resource Committee

The mission ofthe Human Resources Committee is to ensure that the Polytechnic has "rie r€ht personnel

with the right skitts and the right attitude", to carry out the Polylechnic's mission and to support trainee

leaming in accordance with the Strategic Plan. Its role is to assist Council in fulfillirig its responsibilities

towards the employees ofthe Polltechnic in areas such as employment, recruitment, remuneration, equity,

training and development and compliance with all relevant applicable laws.

i. Developing a long-term Human Resources plan that is aligned with the Strategic Plan's long-term

goals of the Polytechnic

ii. Conducting the annual assessment ofthe Polyechnic's human resources needs and following up with

the issues in areas of retirement, and separations.

iii. To consider qualified candidates for filling vacant positions in the Polytechnic.

iv. To short list candidates who are considered to have met the job requirements in accordance with the

announcement inviting applications for the positions.

v. To recommend to Council the appointment of suitable candidates(s) after considering all the

requirements for the post or in case of there being no suitable candidate to recommend re-

advertisement for the positions.

vi. To review and make recommendations to Council on Salaries, Terms and Conditions of Service as

and when necessary or when directed to do so by Council from time to time for all Polyechnic

employees.

vii. Assessing the academic staffing struchrre, and administrative structure to ensure that these structures

are aligned with current and future needs of the Polytechnic.

viii. Periodically conduct training to promote effectiveness ofthe members.

ix. Conducting awareness workshops on health, hygiene and work life balance.

x. Create a team spirit through networking and social functions.

xi. To consider and advise Council on action to be taken with regard to staff disciplinary matters.

xii. To submit regular reports to the Council on all matters related to human resources.

Table 4. Composition of humrn resource Committee

t

ChairpersonI Mr. Obadiah Okeri

Ps representative VTT-Member2 Mr Peter Kamau

Member3 Mr Stephen Mwaniniki Muniko

Secretary4 Mr Daniel Nyariki Onpvoki

vlll



Kisii Natlonal Polytechnic
Annu.l R€port and Financial Statements
For the yetr ended 30th June 2023
Senior Management Activities

The main purpose of the senior management team is to

(i) Ensure that KNP's GC is able to take strategic decisions relation to the lnstitute's activities;
(ii) Provide leadership in communicating KNP's mission, vision, strategic goals, core values,

plans and achievements effectively and consistently to GC, Govemment, and Stafl Clients,
community members and the general public and other stakeholders;

(iii) Be accountable for the developmenr and implementation of the lnstitute's strategic,
corporate and business plans in line with the mission and vision; and

(iv) Take a strategic overview ofperformance in all areas ofthe Institute's activities.

Specilically, the Senior Management Team:

i) Make recommendations to the GC on the implementation and achievement of the Board,s
Strategic Framework;

ii) Monitor the Institute's Corporate Plan delivery through appropriate key management and
performance information reporting to the Board of Govemors appropriately;

iii) In light of income projections and forecasts, considers the annual grants and operational
expenditures and monitors such expenditures;

iv) Determines strategic issues arising from the introduction of new policies or process,
including actively managing risks across the Institute and regularly reviewing the corporate
risk register;

v) considers the impact of extemal factors and developments, including specific political
initiatives and lhe response to key consultation documents and where appropriate make
recommendations to the Board and,/or its relevant Committees; and

vi) Leads all managers in motivating and developing the Institute's staff to deliver the highest
standards of performance and customer service.

lx
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(f) EntityHeadqurrters

Kisii National PolYechnic
P.O. Box 222
Kisii-Keroka Road
Kisii, Kenya

(g) Entity Cotrtacts

Customer Care Desk
Telephone: 058-7 69061 07 0087 699 |
E-mail: info@kisiipoly.ac.ke
Website: www.kisiipoly.ac.ke

(h) Entlty Bankers

0) IndepetrdentAuditors

Auditor-General
O{fice of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Insfitute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

0) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attomey General
State Law OIIice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

x

Central Bank of Kenya
Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Co-operative Bank of Kenya
Kisii Branch

Kenya Commercial Bank
Kisii Branch
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3.The Governing Council

PhD in Education (TVET)-Royal Melboume

Instinrte of Technology (RMIT University)

Melboume, Australia

M. Phil and B.Ed -Technology Power Mechanics

Technology) Moi University, Kenya..

I

P'l

Mr. Mongeri Mirieri
Chairman Governing Council

Eng. Ng'eno was appointed to the Governing
Council in March 2023. He holds a BSc. Mechanical
Engineering from The University of Nairobi and has

courses towards attainment of MSc. In Energy
Studies at Moi University. He also has a Certificate
in Cane Sugar Manufactue from Rastic Mauritius.
He is a member ofthe Engineers Board ofKenya and

a corporate member with the Institution ofEngineers
of Kenya. Eng. Ng'eno currently serves as the
Director- AGM Construction and Engineering Co.

Ltd. Previously, he served as the Head ofProcessing
and Engineering Department at the Kenya Seed

Company, Factory Workshops Engineer at the
Chemilil Sugar Company, Maintenance Manager at

the East Afiica Training and Extract Company
among other positions held in nationally recognized
companies.

2

)

11

I

Eng, Andrew Ngeno
Member

Mr, Obadiah Okeri was appointed to the
Governing Council in March 2023.
He holds B.A Economics and statistics

3

I

Mr. Obrdlah Okeri
Membcr

xl
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i

4
Was appointed to the Goveming Council in March.

2023. He holds MBA (HRM)

Mr. Marwa Munlko
Member

J

Ms. Sharon Rose Sabato
Member

Ms, Sharon Rose Sabato was appointed to the

Governing Council in March, 2023.

She holds MSc prqect management

6

I
I

Mr. Peter Kamau
Member

Representative of Principal Secretary Ministry of
Education

7

Mr, Denlcl Nyrdu
Ch tcf Principrl / Sccrtliry

GovcrnirS cou!cll

B.Ed( Science) Maths/Physics
Kenyatta University

xll
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4. Key Management Team

Mr. Ilrnlel NyeriH
Chief Prirclprl / Sccrctrry

Goverrhg councll

B.Ed(Science) Maths/Physics
Kenyatta University

2

Dr George Were Momanyi PhD
Deputy Principal Academics

)

PhD in Strategic Management
In charge of Students' affairs and
academic progress

3 u Princi I Administration
Mabel Wanjala

B.Ed Science -Maseno University;Dip in
Education management
ln charge of administration matters

xlll
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In conclusion I suongly believe that with all the planned shategies as envisaged, it is apparent that the

future ofthe Polytechnic is bright and secure. Our commitment as a Council is to continue setting the right

tone at the top, which is geared towards the realization of the Polytechnic's vision and mission.

Finally, I want to thank my fellow members of the Council, the Principal, the Management Board, Staff

and Trainees of Kisii National Polyechnic for their commitment and hard work exhibited during the year.

I also wish to thank the Government and all our stakeholders for their unwavering support. It is our

expectation that the peaceful and productive environment witnessed during the year will continue into the

coming year.

&z:s=
Mr. Mongeri Nyengenyeria Mirlerl

CIIAIR GOVERNING COUNCIL
22t0212024

DATE:

xvl
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6. Report of the Chief Prlncipal

I am pleased to present my report for the 202112022 financial year, which ended on 30 lwte 2022.

Kisii National Polytechnic is located within Kisii Municipality about l.5Km South East of Kisii Township,

Kisii Comty. The institution was founded in l97l as Gusii Instihrte of Technology and was upgaded as a

Nationat Polyechnic in 2016. Since then the students population has increased progressively. In the

Financial year 202212023 the total student population was 13017 across ten academic departrnents as shown

in the table below.

Trble 5, Totrl enrolment rs at 30tr June 2022 ead deprrtments.

Electrical and Electronic Engineering 58 5t4 l9t4I

,
3

4

5

6

7
t
9

Mechanical Engineering
Building & Civil Engineering
Applied Science

Computer Studies

Busrness Studies

Communication and Dev't Studics

Hospitality Management

Health Science

Agriculture and Environment

TOTAL ENROLMENT

t7l
t24

5lt
1060

438

337

361

196

963
187

2lt
4640

1342
502
t4E4
165

943
704
492

933

334

374

7273

t046
2ffi
603

t2'o
1055

6tt
2516

s32

585

130r7

10

720

lr04

The above admission strength is served by 307 trainers and 142 non-teaching staff. The population is
cxpected to continue increasing due to the govemment new funding initiative for tertiary education and the
institution national appeal in its status as a national polyechnic.

Kisii National Polyechnic has embraced best practice in its service delivery by investing in a 5 year
Strategic Plan.

To ensure service delivery as envisaged in the institution vision and mission statements the institution uses

performance contacting where targets are set by all departments and staffand used to inform and measure
performance. Kisii National Polyechnic also holds graduation ceremonies annually to celebrate and award
graduates of the institution. About 2,750 trainees graduated in ApnL,2023.
The institution's service delivery is also informed by Quality management System being ISO certified.

Kisii National Polyechnic also has over the years defined its place in research, innovation and development
by participafing annually and even holding research conferences and engaging in regional and annual TVET
Fairs.

xvll
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Finenciel Performance

As in the previous years, the main source of funding to the Polltechnic during the period under review was

school fees with a contribution of a total of Kshs 345.7 million for recunent expenditure purposes. In

addition, Kisii National Polytechnic generated a sum ofKshs 7.6 million fiom Income Generating Activities

(IGA's), Catering and other Incomes. The Polyechnic also received Kshs l74.8million from the Ministry

ofEducation being the capitation. However, at the end ofthe financial year the Polytechnic had not received

revenue ofKshs 60.2 million being capitation for Quarter four

In conclusion, I take this opportunity to thank the Polytechnic Council for providing the desired guidance

and support during the year which was way beyond expectations and which I highly appreciate. I also wish

to sincerely thank the Management team, all staff and Trainees for the peace, hard work and discipline

exhibited tkoughout the year.

Finally, I would like to thank the Govemment for its support during the period under review. I also

appreciate the moral support ofour collaborators, partners and other stakeholders during the year.

It is my desire that we shall continue working together as a team in the new financial year and beyond

I

Tom Wanjala Mulati
PrlncloaUSecretgrv Governlns Council Date 2210212024

xvlll
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1. Strtement of Performrnce rgeinct Predetermined Objectives

Kisii National Polytechnic has 9 strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the Financial

Years 2018-2023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar l: To provide Market Oriented Training Programs

Pillar 2: To Undertake Applied Research and Develop Innovation

Pillar 3: To adopt ICT in Teaching, Learning, Research and Management

Pillar 4: To Provide Quality Leaming Environment

Pillar 5: To Enhance the Human Resource Capital Capacity Base ofKNP
Pillar 6: To Enhance the Financial Sustainability ofKNP
Pillar 7: To Enhance Efficiency and Effectiveness ofthe Polytechnic Management and Govemance

Pillar 8: To Enhance Result - Based Performance Evaluation and Quality Assurance

Pillar 9: To Enhance the Corporate Social Responsibility of KNP

Kisii National Polyechnic develops its Annual Work Plans based on the above nine Pillars. Assessment of
thc Courcil's performance against its Annual Work Plan is done on a quarterly basis. The Polyechnic
achieved its performance targets set for the Financial Yeat 202212023 period for its 9 Strategic Pillars, as

indicated in the diagram below

xlx



I
l. STRATEGIC THEMEflSSUE: Academic Progrlmmes

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 1:

To provide Market Oriented Programmes

2. STRATEGIC THEME/ISSUE: Research Innovation and Devclopment

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2: To undertake Applied Research and Develop Innovations

Outco6c
l.l

Improved Merket Orlcnted Trrlnlng Progrrmnes

AchievementsActivitiesStategic
Obiectives

Iky Perlornaace
ladicators

4onducted 2 labour
market surveys
-26 curricula for
market-oriented
courses developed
-50 staff trained in
various short courses
(intemal audit,
finance, sign language,
ERP, Procurement)
- all trainees exposed
to practical skills
- IAC established in
Mechanical
- Exams analysed to
determine pass rate

To provide

Market

Oriented

Training
Programmes

-Labor market
survey reports
-Curricula for
market-oriented
courses
-Annual staff
training reports
-Practical trainir:g
schedules
-lAC committees
- lntemal and
extemal results
analpis

-Conduct labour market

surveys

-Capacity building of staff

-Expose trainees to

appropriate practical skills

-collaborate with industry

in training progams

-Improving pass rates

OutconlG
2.1

Urdcrrrb Appllcd Roureh ud Devclql Innovedour

AchievernentsStratcgic
Obicaives

Key Perlormance
Indicalorc

Aaivities

- Staff and trainees

participated in regional

TVET fair

-Hosted an intemational

inter{isciplinary research

conference

-l6innovations developed

-3 Publications done

To undertake
Applied
Research
and Develop
lnnovations

-Applied research
reports
- Patents and
property rights
-Research

collaboration

reports

-Conferences

-Publications

- Participate in TVET

fairs

-Carry out innovations

- Disseminate research

findings

-Do publications

xx
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3. STRATEGIC TIIEME/ISSUE: ICT Integration

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 3r

Adopt ICT in Teaching, Leaming, Research and Management

4. STRATEGIC TIIEME/ISSUE: Lerrning Environment

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4: To Provide Quality Leaming Environment

Oulcorc
3.1

ICT rdopted in Terchlng Lerrnln& R.crcarch ud Mrlrg DG[t

AchievcmentsStrategic
Objectives

Key
Performance
Indicators

Strategies

Adopt ICT
lntegation within
the Institution

-Intemet

conEact

agreement

-Portals in

place

-Up to date

website

-Biometric

identification

kits

-ERP contract

agreement

-E-content

-Provide intemet services

-Update the website

-Maintain student and staff

portal

-Adopt biometric identifi cation

-Implement ERP

-lnternet provided

(100mbs) both LAN

and WIFI

-Portals in place

-Up to date website

-Biometric

identification kits

-ERP contract

agreement

-E-content

Outcona
.f,1

Improved Lcrrning Envlronnent

AchievementsStrategic
Objedives

Key
Pedormance
Indicators

Activilies

To provide
quality
leaming
environment

-Complete two
sheds
constructed
-Equipped
laboratories
- stocked library

-To construct two
sheds to take care of
the increased
shrdent population
-To construct
Tuition Block
Complex ll Phase

-Two complete
sheds

-Tuition Block
constructed up to
80% level

xxl
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5. STRATEGIC THEMEiISSUE: Humrn Capital Crprcity

STRATEGIC OBJECTM 5: To enhance human capital capacity base and Financial Sustainability

in the Institution

6. STRATEGIC THEME/ISSUE: Resource Mobilization, Collaboration and Entrepreneurship.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 6:

Enhance the Finaucial Sustainability ofKNP

-Laboratories
equipped
-Library stoked
with new book
titles.
- Exka waskooms
constructed to cater

for the increased

population
- Grill fixed to the
perimeter wall
-Approved report

-Adequate
sanitation
facilities
-Perimeter wall
constructed
-Approved
Report for clean
water

-Equip laboratories
-Stock the library
with new book titles
-construct sanitation
facilities
-To fix a grill to the
perimeter wall
-To provide clean
water for use

OrEora
t.t

Irryrovod f,nm! Crpltrl Crprdty Brt

AchievemcntsStralegic
ObJeaives

Kcy
Pcrlornance
Indicslots

Activities

- ,14 council staff

recruited in deficit

areas

-15 staff carried out

benchmarking

- Staff sensitized on

PC targets

- 50 staff attended

various trainings

-Recruit staff in deficit

areas

-Carry out benchmarking

-Carry out sensitization

-Carry out trainings

To enhance

human capital

capacity base of
KNP

- Signed

contracts for

council staff

-benchmarking

reports

-sensitization
rePorts

Itlr.ncld SurtrlrrHltty of KNP EtrhlncedOutcooe
6.r
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7. STRATEGIC THEME/ISSUE: Polytechnlc Governance

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 7:

Enhance Efflciency rnd Effectiveness of the Polytechnic Managemetrt and Governance

8. STRATEGIC THEME/ISSUE: Monitoring and Evduation

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 8:
To enhance result-based performance evaluation and quality assurance

AchievementsStrategiesStrategic
Obiectives

lsszes

- Polytechnic halls

and grounds hired out

-Maintenance of

facilities done

intemally

-Building department

engaged to construct

the perimeter wall

- Collaboration MOU
with the Kisii County
Govemment for
maintenance of
Capital round about

and people's park in
force

-Hire facilities

-carry out intemal maintenance

of facilities and equipment

-Use departments to carry out

projects

-Sign MOUs for collaboration

Enhance
Financial
Sustainability
KNP

the

of

-Financial

reports

-Production

units

-MOU
agreements

(rutcortre
7.1

Enhenced Ellclency rnd Efiecfiveners of thc Polytechnlc Murgoment rnd GoYero.[ce

Stategies AchievenentsStalegic
Obieaives

Issaes

-Service charter reviewed

and converted to audio-

visual format

-QMS implemented

JSMS implemented

-Student elecfion held

-Student constitution
reviewed

Enhanced

Efiiciency and

Effectiveness

of the

Polytechnic

Management

and

Govemance

-Reviewed

charter

-QMS

certification

-ISMS

certification

-shrdent union

-Student
constitution

-Review service charter

-Implement QMS

-Implement ISMS

-Hold student election

-Review student
constitution
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Outcone
8.1

ErbJrccd r€rutt-brted performtnce evrlurdon .nd qu.llty usurrnce

AchieeemenlsStralcgic
Obieaives

lsszes Stategies

-Monitoring carried

out quarterly

-2 intemal audits

carried out

-l extemal audit

carried out

-Cary out intemal audits

-Carry out extemal audits

Enhanced Result
Based
Performance
Evaluation and

Quality Assurance

-M&E reports

-Intemal Audit

reports

-Extemal
Audit reports

9. STRATEGIC THEME/ISSUE: Corporrte Social Responsibility

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 9:
Enhance the Corporate Social Responsibility of KNP

Eilrrccd CorporetcSocld Rc4onrlblXtyOutcoDc
9.1

AchievemenbSfiategic
Obieaives

fssaes Strat'qics

-Capital round about

maintained

-Trees planted at the

county people's park

- Children's home

visited and given

donations

-Alumni data base

updated

-Tracer study
conducted

-Maintain capital round about

-Beautify Kisii County people's

park

-Visit children's home

-Update Alumni data base

Enhance the

Corporate Social

Responsibility of
KNP

-Budgets

-worksheets

-Register of
alumni
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t. Corporate Governance Statement

l. Process of Council Members Appointment.

The Polytechnic Council was appointed by the Cabinet Secretary Ministry ofEducation, with effect from

lTth March 2023 for a term ofthree years. There are nine Council members comprising ofthe Chairman,

one member representing Principal Secretary Ministry of Education, six (6) independent members. The

Principal is an ex-o/ficio member of the Council.

Subject to the provisions of the Polyechnic order, the office of a member of the Council shall become

vacant if the member:

a) Resig,s by notice in writing addressed to Cabinet Secretary
b) Is unable to perform the functions of the Office due to prolonged physical or mental incapacity.

c) ls adjudged bankrupt by a court ofcompetent jurisdiction or enters into a composition or scheme

of arrangement for the benefit of creditors
d) ls guilty ofgross misconduct
e) Fails to meet requirements ofchapter six of the Constitution

Or
f) Is convicted of an offence and sentenced to imprisonment for a period of six months or more.

The appointment of Council members shall

a) Take into account ethnic and gender balance
b) Promote inclusion ofpersons with disability, minorities and marginalized and

c) Ensure balanced cores skills and competencies amongsl the members

In appointing members of the Council, the Cabinet Secretary shall stagger the appointment of some

members to maintain a proportion ofnew membership that ensures continuity in the services ofthe Council.

2. Process of Council Memb€r Removal.

Where the office ofa member ofthe Council becomes vacant the Cabinet Secretary may subject to the
provisions ofthis order, appoint another person to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term of such member.

Nowithstanding the generality of the foregoing any member of the Council suspected of having
contravened chapter six or chapter thirteen of the Constitution shall vacate office to pave way for
investigations.

Where a person who has vacated oflice under sub-paragraph (3) is not found culpable after investigations
carried out under sub-paragraph (5) the person shall be reinstated as a member ofthe Council.

Paragraph l2 shall apply with respect to the conduct of the business and affairs of the Council.

3. Roles rnd Functions ofthe Council

To ensure that proper management structure is in place and that the management maintain the

corporate integrity, reputation and responsibility of the Polyechnic
To monitor and evaluate the implementation ofthe strategies, policies and management plans of the

Polytechnic
xxv
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I
lll To constantly review the viability and financial sustainabrlity ofthe Polytechnic once in every year

To ensure that the Pol),technic complies with all the relevant laws, regulations, govemance practices

and accounting and auditing standards

4, Committees of the Polytechnic Council

In order to facilitate the smooth running of its affairs, the Polyechnic Council establishes such committees

with the membership and with such terms of reference as it may deem fit. The following committees were

in place during the financial year 202212023

i. Education, Training and Research

ir. Finance and General Purpose

iii. Human Resource

iv. Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Polyechnic Council nominates a chairperson ofeach committee ofthe Council, in the absence ofthe

Chairperson ofany committee, the members present and constituting a quorum may elect one person from

among them to chair the meeting. The Chairperson of the Polytechnic Council and the Principal are ex-

officio members of every committee of the Council.

5. lnduction Training

The TVET Act No. 29 of 2013 Section 28 and 29 establishes and gives mandate to the councils

and Boards of Govemors to manage the TVET institutions on behalf of the Education Cabinet

Secretary.

It is a requirement that the Goveming Council members understand their functions and conduct

hence the need for induction.

ln the 2022 12023, financial year Council attended two (2) training as follo

a. TVETA Council Induction training I 2rh - l4th April 2023-Lake Naivasha Resort

The following topics were covered

ll

lv

Legislative and Regulatory Requirements: Leading practices, Strong elfective board,

finance and audit committees and clear accountability for Risk Management and Intemal

Control Financial Management & Reporting

Roles and Responsibilities of audit committees vis-i-vis the board: policy considerations,

purpose, mandate, responsibilities, coverage and contributing value to the entity Policies,

Laws and TVET reforms

Corporate Govemance: How the Tone at the Top Influences the Corporate Culture

Procurement and Assets Disposal in TVET lnstitutions

Audit Committee and Board Operation

F Techniques for running effective meetings

> Composition ofaudit committee and requisite skills required to ensure their effectiveness

F Audit Committee and board Charter, Terms of Reference, meetings, planning of agendas

and annual work plan
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F Measuring and Reporting the Board and Committee's Performance

Board and Audit Committee oversight over Financial Reporting, Procurement and

Budgeting Processes

Board and Audit Committee oversight over Risk Management and Fraud Risk Managementvl.

b. Governance and Quality Management Training at Lake Naivasha Resort, Naivasha from l7s
to l9th May, 2023

The Following topics were covered:

i. Risk Management.

ii. Procurement and Supply Chain Management.

iii. Quality Audit Tool.

iv. Quality Assurance Gap Analysis and Challenges

v. Quality Assurance Management.

vi. ProjectManagement.

vii. Legal and cross cutting issues

viii. Research and Innovation.

ix. Action Plan for gaps identified analysed and presentations

5. CouncilRemunerrtion

Kisii National Polytechnic Council members do not receive a salary. However, they are paid a sitting

allowance for every scheduled meeting attended. The Chairman also receives a monthly honorarium. The

sitting allowance paid to the council members is disclosed in note l3 ofthe financial statements

Shered Believe

The Polytechnic Council and management have a shared believe that corporate governance is a continuous

process and that good corporate govemance must be embedded in our culnue to support our values of
discipline, high moral standards and integ ty, which are fundamental to the long-term success, and

sustainability ofour mandate as an institution ofhigher leaming.

n't^-<---\s= \ \ r
Mongeri Mirieri Nyangaileria
Cheir Governins Council Drte: 22102t2024
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I

9. Management Discussion and Analysis

Operational and Financial Performance

The following management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides a comprehensive overview ofthe
financial position of Kisii National Polytechnic as at June 30,2022 and its changes in financial position for
the year the ended, as compared with the financial year 2020/2021.

During the year that hasjust ended, financial reporting ofKrsii National Polytechnic included l0 academic

departments, offering 34 diploma programmes, 28 Craft Certificate programs and l2 Artisan programmes,

with I 1,5 l7 trainees enrolled. Kisii National Polyechnic conducts its activities on 42 acres of land.

The Polytechnic's annual financial report includes four basic financial statements: The Statement of
Financial Performance, the Statement ofFinancial Posrtion, the Statement ofCash Flows and the statement

ofComparison ofBudget and Actual Amount. These statements focus on the financial performance ofthe
Polyechnic, the changes in financial position, cash flows ofthe Polyechnic's activities and compliance
with the approved budget respectively

Financial Hlghlights

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions was the major source of funding for the Polyechnic

During the financial year 2022/2023, the enrolment was 13,017 trainees compared to I1,517 Tratnees tn

frnmcial year 2021 12022 .

Operating Revenue Source for the last three yerrs

Govemment Capitation
Tuition (School Fees)

Hire of Facility
Income Generating Activities
Catering (Pay-As-You-Eat)
Other Income

Kshs
137,490,000
243,359,437

l ,002,010
9,574,245
249,405

87,360

Kshs
410,27 5,7 7 6

465,407,123

1,203,000
t7,898,473

Kshs
176,353,900
345,720,820

9 t 6,109
7,679,262

t3,446,625 24,908,895

Total 39t,762,457 908,230,997 555,578,986

Total operating revenues decreased by Kshs 352.6 million, from 908,2 million in 202112022 to
555.5million in 2022/2023 as a result of drastic reduction of capitation money per student by the
govemment. Funher Capitation money due for Quarter 4 was not sent by the govemment.
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Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes the Institution's operating expenses for the last three years

Use ofGoods and Services

Employee Costs

Council remuneration

Depreciation and Amortization/rev loss

Repair Maintenance & Improvement
Finance Costs
Contracted Services
Total

Total Operating Revenue

Kshs
151,317,918
109,713,3 t 3

I1,617,650

38,777,834

Kshs

3s2,24t,291
I16,378,611
7,644,286

14,057,724

Kshs
219,049,985

124,326,612
6,853,360

47,443,677
143,989,6s3

t56,774
t2,730,950

ss4s82I2t

601,683 375,820

312,028398 555,tll,t9t

Total operating expenses for the year was Kshs 554.5 million. There was a decrease ir operating expenses

of Kshs 1.2 million from 555.8 million in the year 202112022 to Kshs 554.5 million in the year 202212023.

An analysis of expenses demonstrates that the major expendihrre of the Polytechnic in the year under

review was use of goods and services representing 40.6% while compensation to employees (i.e. salary,

wages and benefits) accounted for 2l.l % ofthe total operating expenses.

Sumnary of Financial Perlormance over rhe last lhree years

The Statement ofFinancial Performance presents the revenues eamed and the expenses incurred during the

year under review

Kshs

391,762,457
312,028,398

Kshs

908,230,997

555,811,898

Kshs

555,578,986

554,582,E28Total Operating Expenses

Surplus (Deficit)
79.734,059 352.419.099 99 158

During the year under review, the polytechnic shows a considerable decrease in operating surplus from

Kshs 352.4 million in the financial year 202112022 to Kshs 0.9 million in the year 202212023.This was as

a result ofreduced revenue from rendering ofservices and also from govemment capitation.

Strtement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position presents the financial position of the Polyechnic at the end of the

fourth quarter and includes all assets (current and non-cunenQ, liabilities (current and non-current) and net

position ofthe Polytechnic. Net position is one indicator ofthe financial position ofthe Polyechnic, while
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the change in net position is an indicator ofwhether the overall financial position has improved or worsened

during the year.

Summary of Financial Posilion ovet the last three yeats.

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Total Asscts

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Kshs
279,699,806

1,608,215,961

rE87 ?9ts]97
82,102,908

1,805,812,t59

Kshs
436,919,307

2,427,996,759

2,864,9t6,066

190,t24,266

2,674t791,800

Kshs
335,435,07 |

2,598,352,280

2,933,787,351

133,302,082

2,800,483,269

Current Assets and Current Lirbilities

Current assets include cash and cash equivalent, Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions and

Receivable from Exchange Transactions

Total Liebilities

Total liabilities include trade and other payables from Exchange Transactions, Refundable deposits to

customers and payments received in advance.

Total liabilities decreased by Kshs 56.8 million fiom Kshs 190.1 million in the year 202112022 to Kshs

133.3 million in the year 202l/2023. This is primarily related to an increase in refundable deposits to

customers.
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10. EnvironmentalandSustainabilityReportingStatement

Kisii National Polytechnic exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind everything

we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the customer/citizen first, delivering relevant

goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is a highlight of strategies and activities

that promote the organisation's strategic objectives.

Sustrinability Strategy and Profi Ie

The Polytechnic is charged with the responsibility of creating a knowledge-based society that upholds

justice, democracy and accountability. In this regard, KNP is under duty to promote a culture ofcompliance

with laws, civility and human decency in behaviour among the Polyechnic community and between the

Polytechnic community and the outside world. At the same time, the government, communities,

development partners and other stakeholders continue to make substantial investment to support higher

education programs and projects.

In the last few years, the Polyechnic has benefited from CDF through fees payment for various needy

trainees. As one of the TVET institutions in Kisii County, it will be prudent for the administrators, political

players and stakeholders not only to continue with their goodwill in harnessing financial support which will

not only be of great use to the Polltechnic, but also in helping the Polytechnic amongst other institutions,

position itself in terms of TVET training in hne with Vision 2030.

The govemment's effort is appreciated within the context of TVET Act of 2013 on Technical and

Vocational Education and Training, Research and In.novation. This has given much impetus to the

allocation of funds to TVET institutions in form of Trainees' capitation, HELB loans and bursaries and

infrastructual development fund in the implementation of the "big 4" Agenda.

KNP is located in Kisii County within an area of moderately well-endowed work force. Being in the town

proximity, the Polytechnic is exposed to a variety of challenges that must be addressed. At instinrtional

level, the increase in the number of trainees enrolled in regular programmes has not been matched by the

desire for expanded infrastructure such as leclure halls and lecture rooms, library, offices, workshops and

laboratories, hostels and other facilities. KNP has increasingly been compelled to address its funding

shortfal I from allemative sources.

The Kenya Vision 2030 has accorded science, technology and innovation high priority.

The vision is based on the realization that in an increasingly knowledge-based and globalized world,

Science,

Technology and Innovation (ST&l) are essential. both for social and economic progress and for global

competitiveness ofour nation. KNP is a critical driver ofinnovation systems and the resultant development

in science, technology and innovation such as our award-winning robot in the TVET robotic contest

involving universities and colleges.

Technical education is essential for economic progress and for gtobal competitiveness ofour nation and is

also central in productivity and the socio-economic transformation of the country. The Sector Plan for

Science, Technology and Innovation (2018-2023) provides for revitalization and hamessing of science,

technology and innovation for Kenya's prosperity and global competitiveness. In this regard, human

resource development, research and knowledge generation will be strengthened at KNP to enhance their

applcation in national production systems for sustainable development.

In Iine with the fourth agenda ofthe "Big 4" and the Vision 2030, KNP has the knowledge and capacity to

deliver on the Manufacturing agenda.
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KNP needs to improve and expand the laboratories/workshops and accredit them to meet the set standards

for the local and intemational market. Further, KNP will construct and equip an innovation

laboratory/workshop.

Environmental performance

Protection of the environment in which we live and operate is part ofour organizational cultural values and

principles and we consider it to be a sound business practice. Care for the environment is one of our key

responsibilities and an important part of the way in which we do business.

We commit to:

i. Provide a framework for planning and sustainable management ofthe Polytechnic environment.

ii. Strengthen the institutional and individual capacity for effective management ofthe environment.

iii. Ensure sustainable management ofthe Polytechnic's environment and its sunounding.

iv. Ensure cooperation, collaboration, partnerships and participation in the protection conservation

and management ofthe environment by all stakeholders.

Application of these principles and practices will make a significant contribution to the Pol)'technic's

environmental sustainability programs.

The Management therefore ersures that the Polytechllic reduces the environmental impact by:

i. Engaging with staff, Trainees and the surrounding communities to encourage environmentally

sustainable behaviour.

Planting of trees to minimize greenhouse gas emissions in operations and work towards carbon

neutrality.
Minimizing use of natural resources such as water, non-renewable energy and paper.

Following the waste hierarchy- avoid or minimize, reduce, reuse, recycle and then dispose off
correctly as the last option.

Minimizing the use of hazardous substances.

Encouraging sustainable practices in relation to design, transport and travel, procurement and

catering.

lt
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Employee welfare

When a vacant position arises, an advertisement is placed in two leadilrg daily newspapers and online in

order to reach a wide audience and coverage. The adverts usually contain a caption indlcating that the

polyechnic is an equal opportunity employer. Women, people with disabrlities and marginalised

communities are encouraged to apply.

During the shortlisting process, the panel ensures that at least a rhird (l/3) of the candidates are opposite

gender. Throughout the interview process, if the highest number of successful caltdidates are male a

consensus is reached to engage a female candidate though they may not have scored the highest but have

met the minimum requirements.

ln the course of hiring process, the relevant stakeholders Iike the heads ofdepartments are involved in every

stage of the recruitment process in order to get the best fit for the Departments. The council also takes part

in the interviews to ensure a balanced perspective and transparency in the recruitment process. Retums are

made after the interviews to the Ministry of Education on the recruitment of Public Service Commission

trainers.
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Every year retums are made to the National Employment Authority (NEA) on the status of all emPloYees

in each year. The retums include those that have been hired and those who have left the service of the

Polyechnic during the year.

Efforts made by the Polytechnic to improve employees' skills include:

I . The Human Resource Deparfinent carries out a training needs assessment from which a training

calendar is developed in order to ensure that the polyechnic has the right skills.

2. The Polyechnic pays trainings to build their competencies in various areas and pays for their

membership in professional bodies.

3. The Polyechnic's ICT and Hospitality Department have in house programs for training

Staff in their areas of specialization in order to improve their skills.

The Polytechnic carries out an annual appraisal process during which employees are evaluated by

the Heads of Department in consultation with the Human Resource Officer in order to their strengths

and weaknesses and recommendations are given to improve on the identified weak areas identify.

On health and safety, the Polyechnic carries out a First Aid training for both Trainees and staffand

this is carried out annually. The polyechnic has procured a WIBA cover for all staff

Mrrket place practices-

The management also ensured that we dealt responsibly, openly and fairly with clients and

partrers/stakeholders as defined in our service charter by:

l.
ii.

iii.
iv.

vi.
vii.

Serving our clients with dignity, courtesy and respect.

Continuously providing efficient and effective service.

Adhering to ethical and equitable service provision

Enhancing transparency, integrity and accountability

Observing the principle ofnatural justice.

Maintaining appropriate confi dentiality

Discharging our duties professionally and with due diligence and ensuring delivery of affordable

quality education.
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Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

The Pollechnic dispensary in conjunction with Ministry of Health Kisii County caries out medical

screening every term for the Trainees, staff and the community around the institution.

The screening of the neighbounng community was majorly on non-communicable diseases like

hlpertension and diabetes where those who availed themselves had their blood pressure and blood

sugar checked and all the suggestive cases were given referrals accordingly by the Polyechnic

clinician. This was preceded by sensitization of our community on all the non-communicable

diseases on preventive measures. Major cleaning up exercise of areas around the institution and

the police station was undertaken to maintain good environmental hygiene.

The operational and ultimate responsibility for the commitment to our Corporate Social

Responsibility principles lies with the Council and the top management. Every employee of

Polytechnic is expected to give their full co-operation to the above principles in their activities at

work. Clients or stakeholders are also expected to apply our environmental principles.

The effectiveness ofthe policy statement will be monitored and reviewed regularly by the Council

and Management to ensure the Polyechnic has continued compliance with any relevant legislation

to meet new legal requirements and to identifo areas in need of improvement. We will also ensure

that all changes will be brought to the attention ofall employees as necessary.
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ll. Report ofthe Governing Council

The Council members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended June 30,2\23,which show the state of the Kisii National Polytechnic affairs.

Principal activities

The core business of the Polyechnic is provided for by a legal notice No. 93 for Kisii National

Pol)'technic known as Kisii National Polyechnic order,20l6. The Notice provides in Part II

section 4 (l) the functions and objectives ofthe Polyechnic.

The objects and functions ofthe National Pollechnic shall be to: -

Provide, directly or in collaboration with other institutions ofhigher leaming, facilities for
technical trainers in technological, professional, scientific education;

l. Participate in technological innovation and in the discovery, transmission and

enhancement ofknowledge for economic, social, cultural, scientific, and technological

development;
II. Contribute to industrial and technological development ofKenya, in collaboration with

the industry and other organizations, through transfer oftechnology;
III. Promote and establish a cuhure ofinnovation in engineering and technology and

technology transfer amongst staff and rainees;
ry. Develop an institution with excellence in teaching, training, scholarship,

entrepreneurship, research, consultancy, community service, among other educational

services and products, with emphasis on technology and its development, impact and

application within and outside Kenya;
V. Provide a multi-level system ofpost-secondary school education and training

programmes relevant to the needs ofthe community, covering a wide range of fields and

levels with provision for recognition ofprior learning and flexibility of transition between
programmes;

VI Provide high quality education, research, residential, commercial, cultural, social,

recreational, and sporting and other facilities;
Advance knowledge and its practical application by research and other means, the

dissemination of outcome of research by various means and the commercial exploitation
of research results;
Promote critical inquiry within the Polyechnic and in the general community;
Participate in commercial ventures and activities;
Foster the general welfare of all staff and trainees;
Provide opportunities for development and further training for staffofthe Poll'technic;
Develop and provide educational, cultural, professional, technical and vocational services

to the community and in particular, foster corporate social responsibility;
Provide programmes, products and services in ways that reflect the principles ofequity
and social justice;
Facilitate trainees' mobility between different programmes at different technical training

institutions and other national polyechnics;
Conduct examinations and grant such academic awards as may be provided under this

Order; and

VII

XIv

vul.
x.
x.

xI.
XII.

XIII

XV
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xvI Collaborate with recognized universities for the conduct and award ofdegree
progr.unmes in technology.

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30 are set out on pages l-5

The Governlng Council

The members of the Council who served during the year are shown on page xi-xii.

Auditors

The Auditor Oeneral is responsible for the statutory audit of the Kisii National polytechnic in
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015

By Order ofthe Board

I

Mongeri Mirieri Nyanganyeria

Chair Governlng Council

Mr. Tom Wanjala Mulati

PrincipaySecretary Governing Council
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12. Statement of Board of Council's Responsibilities

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Management Act,20l2 and (Technica[ and Vocational Education

and Training Act,20l3 require the council members to prepare financial statements in respect of
that institute, which give a true and fair view of the state ofaffairs of the institute at the end ofthe
financial yearlperiod and the operating results ofthe institute for that year. The board members are

also required to ensure that the institute keeps proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the institute. The council members are also

responsible for safeguarding the assets of the institute.

The council members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of Kisii National

Polyechnic financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Kisii
National Polytechnic for and as at the end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2021. This

responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management arangements and ensuring

that these continue to be effective throughout the rePorting period; (ii) maintaining proper

accounting records, which disctose with reasonable accuacy at any time the financial position of
the institute; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are fiee from

material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Kisii
National Polytechnic (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The council members accept responsibility for the Kisii National Polyechnic financial statements,

which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and

prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Acr,2012 and (the TVET Act). The

board members are of the opinion that the Kisii National Polyechnic's financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of Kisii National Polytechnic's transactions during the financial year

ended June 30,2023, and ofthe Kisii National Polyechnic's financial position as at that date. The

council members further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the

Kisii National Polytechnic, which have been relied upon in the preparation ofthe Kisii National
Polytechnic's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial
control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the board members to indicate that the Kisii National
Polytechnic will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of
this statement-

xxxvll
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Approval of the financial statemetrts

The Kisii National Polyechnic financial statements were approved by the Board on26l09/ 2023 and

signed on its behalf by:

Mongeri Mirieri Nyrnganyeria

Chairperron of the Board/Council
Tom WanJale Mulatl

Accounting OIfi cer/Principal
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL
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HEADQUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box loo84-oo1oo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KISII NATIONAL POLYTECHNIC FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statemenls that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazetted notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kisii National Polytechnic set
out on pages 1 lo 44, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
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30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of cash flows,
statement of changes in net assets and statemen't of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kisii National Polytechnic as at 30 June, 2023, and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Long Outstanding Current Portion of Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 21(a) to the financial
statements reflects cu, rent portion of receivables from exchange transactions balance of
Kshs.254,738,370, representing an increase of Kshs.108,587,305 from the prior year
balance of Kshs.146,151 ,065. Review of the debtors ageing analysis revealed that
debtors amounting to Kshs.7,153,204 have been outstanding for three (3) or more years.
However, Management did not provide evidence of efforts made to collect the outstanding
debts. Further, no evidence was provided for provision for bad and doubtful debts and the
finance policy does not address how to treat the debts and the period they should remain
outstanding before written off .

ln the circumstances, the recoverability of the receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.7,153,204 as at 30 June, 2023 could not be confirmed.

2. Unrecognized Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial
statements reflects transfers from National Government entities amount of
Kshs.176,353,900 which relates to capitation from the Government for student enrolled
in the institution. The capitation is supposed to be Kshs.7,500 per trainee per quarter
which amounts to Kshs.30,000 per year. However, the annual amount recognized is only
Kshs.13,000 for the registered trainees based on the receipts during the year. The
Management has not accrued for the difference of Kshs.17,000 per trainee that is
receivable which would translate to approximately Kshs.228,587,000. The financial
statements are prepared under accrual basis of accounting.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of revenue from non-exchange
transactions as at 30 June, 2023 could not be confirmed.

a
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3. Revenue from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial
statements reflects revenue from rendering of services - fees from students amount of
Kshs.345,720,820 which is a reduction from the previous year amount of
Kshs.465,407,123. The decrease of Kshs.1 '19,686,303 has not been explained especially
considering the student population has increased from 11,517 to 13,017.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of revenue from exchange transactions as at
30 June, 2023 could not be confirmed.

4. lnaccuracies in Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects total actual
expenditure of Kshs.507,007,515 while a recast gives Kshs.506,950,560 resulting to
unexplained variance of Kshs.56,955. Further, the statement reflects use of goods and
services performance difference of Kshs.16,901,051 while re-computation gives
Kshs.'10,099,746 resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.6,801,305. ln addition, the
statement reflects employee costs performance difference of Kshs.10,617,738 while re-
computation gives Kshs.3,873,388 resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.6,744,350.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kisii National Polytechnic Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.564,619,254 and Kshs.555,578,986 respectively
resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.9,040,268 or 2o/o ol the budget.

Similarly, the Polytechnic expended recurrent expenditure of Kshs.507,007,515 against
an approved recurrent budget of Kshs.384,602,659 resulting to an over-expenditure of
Kshs.122,404,856 or 32o/o of the budget.

ln addition, included is the repair and maintenances of Kshs.143,989,653 against
approved budget of Ksh.24,800,000 leading to an over expenditure of Kshs.119,189,653
whose approval was not provided for audit review:

Report ofthe Audilor-General on Kisii Notional Polytechnicfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023
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Further, the Polytechnic incurred capital expenditure of Kshs.2'17,831,015 out of the
approved budget of Kshs.180,016,595, resulting to an over-expenditure of
Kshs.37,81 4,420 or 21o/o of the budget.

ln the circumstances, the over expenditures were not supported by Board approvals and
Management may have incurred unauthorized expenditure.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements, Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources and Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and
Governance. However, Management has not resolved some of the issues or given any
explanation for failure to adhere to the provisions of the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board templates and The National Treasury's Circular Ref: No. AG.4/16/3
Vol.1 (9) dated 24 June, 2020.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Gonclusion

1. Staff Ethnic Composition

An analysis of the payroll records for the year under review revealed that Kisii National
Polytechnic has a workforce of 263, out of which 225 or 86% are members of the
dominant ethnic community. This is contrary to Section 7(1) and (2) of the National
Cohesion and lntegration Act, 2008 which states that all public establishments shall seek
to represent the diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and no public
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establishment should have more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic
comnrunity.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

2. Construction of a Multipurpose Hall at Kitutu Masaba Technical Vocational
College

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.2,580,402,456 which includes
additions to capital work in progress of Kshs.155,832,721 . Review of records revealed
that the Polytechnic made a payment of Kshs.5,194,770 against contract sum of
Kshs.9,419,280 to a local contractor towards the construction of a multipurpose hall at
Kitutu Masaba Technical Vocational College. The project commenced on
27 February,2022 and was to be completed within sixteen (16) weeks on 14 June,2022.

However, project verification revealed the project has stalled at 55% completion state. At
the time of audit, the contractor was not on sight. Management have not provided
information and supporting documentation for stalling of the project.

Further, the Polytechnic is yet to have the land registered in its name as the ownership
document is still registered under Mon'goni Secondary School and dispensary.

ln the circumstances, the benefits expected from the project have been delayed and may
not be realized.

3. Erection and Completion of a Twin Workshop, Classrooms and Offices Block
at the Proposed Kitutu Chache South Technical and Vocational College

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.2,580,402,456 which includes
additions to capital work in progress of Kshs.155,832,721. As previously reported, review
of records revealed that the Polytechnic awarded a contract towards the erection and
completion of a twin workshop, classrooms and offices block at the proposed Kitutu
Chache South Technical and Vocational College to a local contractor at a contract sum
of Kshs.57,053,885. The contract commenced on 15 April, 2019 for a duration of 52
weeks with expected completion dale ot 24 April, 2020. The contractor had cumulatively
been paid Kshs.51,333,960 as at December, 2023.

Further, the contract sum had been varied upwards from Kshs.57,053,885 to
Kshs.67,102,110 and completion period extended by 139 weeks as a result of a retention
wall and extra classes which were not in the original approved drawings even though the
performance bond that was valid until 7 March, 2020 was yet to be renewed after expiry.

However, physical verification revealed the project was behind schedule al 9Oo/o

completion state. At the time of audit, the contractor was not on sight. Management have
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not provided information and supporting documentation for delay in completion of the
project

ln the circumstances, the benefits expected from the project have been delayed and may
not be realized.

4. Construction of Classrooms, Workshops and Office Block for South Mugirango
Technical and Vocational College

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,580,402,456 which includes additions to capital work in progress of
Kshs.155,832,721 as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements. Review of records
revealed that the National Polytechnic awarded a contract towards the construction of
classrooms, workshops and office block for South Mugirango Technical and Vocational
College to a local contractor at a contract sum of Kshs.55,241,205 for a period of 52
weeks starting from 9 May, 2019 to 9 May, 2020.

However, physical verification of the works carried out in December, 2023 revealed that
the project stalled. Management have not provided information and supporting
documentation for stalling of the project.

ln the circumstances, the benefits expected from the project have been delayed and may
not be realized.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The Standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act,2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Weaknesses in the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System

As previously reported, review of the ERP System employed by Kisii National Polytechnic
to automate all its operations revealed' that the system has one administrator whose
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account has all the roles in the system. ln addition, the system administrator is able to
gr.ant him/herself roles that cut across all departments which is inconsistent with her job
responsibilities. Further, it was noted that the users in the ICT Department have no
defined roles.

ln the circumstances, the security and performance of the Polytechnic's information
technology systems could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Governing Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for such internal controls as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Polytechnic's ability to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Polytechnic or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Governing Council is responsible for overseeing the Polytechnic's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
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and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section ,lB of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Arlicle 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) ol the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSA|s. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.
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a

a

a

a

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, basecj on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Polytechnic's ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Polytechnic to
cease to continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Polytechnic to express an opinion on the financial
statements-

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA v a BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

21 March,2024
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14. Statement of Financial Performence For The Year Ended 30 June 2023

(The notes set out on pages 7 to 38form an integral part ofthe Annual FinanciaI Statements)

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 5 were signed by

( J \i

Cheirman of CounciVBoard Finance Oflicer

ICPAK No 28927

Principal

trrnsrctionsRevenue from Non-Erch

4t0,27 5,77 6t 76,353,9006Transfers from olher National Govemment entities

4t0,275,,776176,353,900

Revenue from Exchange transrctions

465,407 ,123345,720,820
7Rendering of services- fees from students

t7,898,4738 7 ,679,262Sale of goods

I,203,0009r6,r099Rental revenue from facilities and ut ment

t3,446,625l0 24,908,895Other incomes

Miscellaneous income
497,955,221319,225,085Rev€true from Exchangc transactions
908,230,997s55,578,986Totrl Revenue

Expenses

352,24t,291ll
2r9,049,985Use of goods and services

l16,378,61It2
124,326,612Employee costs

7 ,644,2866,853,360l3Council Expenses

t4,057 ,724
t4 4'7 ,47 5,494Depreciation and amortization expense

t'7
143,989,653Repats and maintenance

l8 t2,730,950Contracted services

65,114,166
l5Grants and subsidies

37 s,820t56,774l6Finance cost
555,t11,898554,582,828Total Erpenses

352,419,099996,158Net surplus for the year

D*e22/0212024 Dile 2210212024 Date2210212024
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15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30th June 2023

The Financial Statements set out on pages I to 5 were signed by:

( _l
t

Chairman of
Councll/Board

Finance Officer

ICPAK No 28927

Dile22/0212024

Principel

2

Assets

Current Asscts
59,230,7 54 282,912,37t20Cash and cash uivalents

2s4,738,370 146,151,0652l (a)transactlonsion ofreceivables from excCurrent
4,640,68022(a) 6,192,580transactlonsReceivables from non-exchan

1s,273,367 3,21s,l9llnventories
335,43s,071 436,919,307Total Current Assets

Non-Curl€nt Assets

Investments
2,580,402,456 2,407 ,567 ,60124Property, plant, and equipment

19,834,65625 17,355,324Intangible asses
s94,50026 594,500BiologicaI Assets

2,427,996,7592,398352,280Totd Non-Current Assets

2,933,787351 2,86/,,916,066Totd Asrets
Liabilitles
Current Llabilities

t32,4t5,90927 156,726,7t8Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
9,025,02328 54,228,226Refundable deposits from customers

210,954,944 t4t,u0,932Total Current Lisbilities
Non-Current Liabilities

47,044,448 48,683,33430Deferred income
48,683,33447,044,448Total non- current llsbllities

190,124,266257,999,392Totrl Llrbllities
Net A$ets

I,834,308,762l,786,833,268Revaluation Reserves
840,483,038888,954,690Accumulated Surplus

2,675,787,958 2,674,79t,800Total Net Assets

2,864,9t6,0662,933,787,351Totrl Net Assets and Liabilities

Date 2210212024 Date22102/2O24
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16. Statement of Changes in Net Asset For The Year Ended 30 June 2023

At July l, 2021 r"8&96r,632 4t6,9E9,693 79,861,531 1,t05.E12,E56
Revaluation gain 595,347,t30 595J47.130
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 353,493,345 3s3,493J4s
Capital grants received during the year

Transfer of depreciation/amortization from
capital fund to retained eamings
Transfer of WIP to mentee institutions (79,861,53 l) (79,861,531)
At June 30, 2022 r,E34J0E,762 840,4t3,03E 2,674,791,EOO

At Jnly 1,2022 1,834J0r,762 E40.4E3.038 2,674,791,800
Revaluation gain
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 996,158 996,158
Transfer of depreciation/amortization from
capital fund to accumulated surplus

(47,47s,494) 47,475,494

At June 30,2023 t,786,E33r6E 8tt,954,690 2,675,7E7,958

::v-r

Chairman of CounciUBoard

Date 2210212024

Finence OIIicer

ICPAK No 2E927

Date 2210212024

Principal

Dete 221O212O24
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17. Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended 30 June 2023

Cerh llows from operrting rctivities
Rcceipts

6 176,353,900 410,27 5,77 6Transfers from other National Govemment entities
'1 34s,720,820 465,407 ,123Rcndering of services- fees from students

7,679,262 17.898,4738Sale of goods
916,t09 l,203,0009Rcntal revenue from facilities and equipment

t3,446,625l0 24908,895Other incomes
555.578,986 908,230,997Tot.l Reccipts

Plyments
ll 2t9,049,985 352,241,291Use of goods and services

124,326,6t2 l16,378,61It2Employee costs
6,853,360 7,644,286Council Expenses

143,989,653t7Repairs and maintenance

37 5,820t6
ts6,17 4Finance costs

l8 12,730,950Contracted services
65,I14,166l5Grants and subsidies

34t.7v.174507,107334Total PrYments

357,551,06948,471,652Cerh Flows from operating activities before working capital
clanaes

(l r0,139,205) (t2,295,633)2t(a),22(a)Incr€lse ln rcceiv&bles
( 12,0s8,175) 108,021,358locreese ln inventorles

27,28,30 67 ,87 5,t26 (263,314)lucreese in Deyables
463.0t3.480(5,8s0,603)Net Caeh Flows from operatinq activities

Crrh flowr from investlng rctivities
24 (217,831,0 r 5) (tt7,239,279)Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
(2r7.$r.0r5) (rr7,239.279\Nct c.sh flows used ln investlns actlvities

Cerh flows from linanclne activities
(204,558,t 14)Net cesh flows used in linancing activities
r41.215.3s7(223,68t,617\Net Incre.se(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents

20
282,912,371

t4t,697,014Cash and Cash equivalents at I JULY

20 s9,230,754 282,912371Cash and Crsh equivalents at 30 JUNE

c-- _ ) I

Chairman of
CounciL/Board

Finance Officer

ICPAK No 28927

Date 2210212024

Principal
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I Krsri Netional Polytechnic
Annuel Report and Financial Statements
For the yeer ended 30th Junc 2023
lE. Statement of Com on of Bud Actual amounts For Year Ended 30 June 2023

NotesRevenue Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Transfers from other National
Govemment 45,000,000 45,000,000 I176,353,900 ( l3l,353,900) -292%

Rendering of services- fees from
studenLs 277,259,254 220,000,000 49't,259,254 345,720,820 I 5l.538,434

30%

Rental revenue from facilities and
equipment 7,480,000 7,480,000 916,109 6,563,891

88% lll

Other incomes
14,880,000 14,880,000 3 2,5 88,I s7 ( 17,708,1s7)

-l l90A

Total Income 144,6192,y 220,000,000 564,619,254 555,578,986 9,M0,268 2'/.

Expenses

Use of goods and services
t72,299,254 36,650,98s 208,950,239 219,049,985 (16,901,051) -8%

Employee costs
128,200,000 128,200,000 t24,326,612 10,6t7,738

8o/"

Council Expenses
r0,000,000 10,000,000 6,853,360 3,146,640

3t%

Repairs and maintenance
17,500,000 7,300,000 24,800,000 143,989,653 ( l 19,189,6s3)

48lVo

Contracted services
r2,120,000 532,420 12,652,420 12,730,950 (78,s30) -lo/o

Totrl Erpenditure 340,t t9,254 44,4E3,405 384,502,6s9 507,007,515 (t22,4M,8s6)

Surplus For the Period 4,flm,000 175,516595 rm,0r659s 4t,571,471

Capital Expenditure 4,5{n,fi!0 r7s5r6s95 180,0r6,s9s 217,831,01s (37,E14,420)
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Kisii Netionel Polytcchnic
Alnuel Report end Flnenciel Strtemcnts
For the yerr eeded 30th June 2023

Notes for verietions ebove 107.

The approved budget for transfers from govemment was way too as p€r trend from previous years hence the 292Yo vaiarce
Increase in student receivables resulted to 30plo variance of actual student fees collected vs budgeted

We targeted to collect revenue from hire of facilities based on trend but the target was not actually met due to low tumout of
customers hence the variance of 88%

We collected more revenue under other incomes than budgeted for hence the variance ofl l9%
During the year new goveming council was appointed .Due to the process of the new appointsnents there was a delay hence

less goveming council meetings and activities than expected resulting to underutilization of3l%
During the year the His Excellency the president made a visit to the institution to launch the Konza digital laboratory. As a
result management did face lifting and renovation of the Konza hall. This resulted to overutilization of repairs and

maintenance

l.

ii.
iii.

lv.

6



Kisii National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Finsncial Statements
For the year ended 30th June 2023

I

19, Notes to the Finrncial Statements

General Informgtion
Kisii National Polytechnic is established by and derives its authority and accountability from

TVET Act. The entity is wholly owned by the Govemment of Kenya and is domiciled in

Kenya. The entity's principal activily is proviston ofeducation.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis ofPreparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, planl and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their

estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemalional Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires

management to exercise judgement in the process ofappllng the Kisii National Polytechnic

accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity, or

where assumptions atrd estimates are significant to the frnancial statements, are disclosed in

Notes. The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which

is the functional and reporting currency ofthe Kisii National Pol]technic. The values are

rounded off to the nearest shilling. The financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with the PFM Act, the State Corporations Act, the TVET Act, and Intemational

Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied to all the years presented.
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Kisii National Polytechnic
Annual Report rnd Financial Strtements
For the yerr ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3, Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards

l. Retevant new standards and smendments to published strndards effective for the

year ended 30 June 2023.

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments

Applicable: I't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment

ofthe amounts, timing and uncertainty ofan Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

'Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forwardJooking expected credit loss model

that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to
impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as

part of the risk management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefrts

Applicable: 1"t January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability ofthe information that a reporting

Entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The

information provided should help users of the financial statements and

general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.
(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact ofsuch social benefits provided on the Entity's financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41, Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.
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Kisii National Polytechnic
Annusl Report and Financial Strtements
For the r ended 30th June 2023

New and smended stindards rnd interpretations in issue but not yet effectlve in

the year ended 30 June 2023.

iii).Early adoption of standards
Kisii National Pollechnic did not early-adopt any new or amended standards in year 2023

tt

9

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examp

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting

for financial guamnteed contracts which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

les on

Other improvements

to IPSAS

Applicable l January 202j
o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Governmenl Seclor. Amendments to refer to the latest System of
National Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Nolry deletes the term composite social

security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS

handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable

from l"t Janu 2023

IPSAS 43 Applicable Id Janaary 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees

and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents

those transictions. This information gives a basis for users of frnancial

statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position,

financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.
The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities
IPSAS uI4:

Non- Current
Assets Held
for Sale and
Discontinued
Operations

Applicable I't January 2025
The Standard requires,
Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at

the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Asiets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results ofdiscontinued
I in the statement offinancial erformanceerations to be ted s



Kisii National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial St.tements
For the year ended 30th June 2023

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-erchange transactions

Trrnsfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the

transfer is free from conditions and it is probabte that the economic benefits or service potential

related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. To the extent that there is

a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, the amount is

recorded in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of financial

performance over the useful life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds.

il) Revenue from exchrnge transsctions

Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion

when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour

hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to
the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue fiom the sale ofgoods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards ofownership
have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential

associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated furure cash receipts though the expected life of lhe financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest

income each period.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straightJine basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.
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Kisii National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the Council May 2022 Subsequent

revisions or additional appropriations were made to lhe approved budget in accordance with
specific approvals from the appropriate aulhorities. The additional appropriations are added to the

original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals to conclude the final budget.

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expendirure disclosed

in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a

classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas

the budget is prepared on cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the

accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the

approved budget. A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to

the approved budget, is then presented in the stalement of comparison of budget and actual

amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements

are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation

of the financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts

on a comparable basis included in the statement ofcomparison ofbudget and actual amounts and

the actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been presented on page 5

c) Taxes

Cuftent income ,ax
The entity is exempt from paying taxes as per schedule I ofthe Income Act

Sales lax/ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

)' When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part ofthe cost ofacquisition

ofthe asset or as part ofthe expense item, as applicable.

) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount ofsales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as

part ofreceivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

ll



Kisii National Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Flnancial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

d) Investment property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying

amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the

time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day

maintenance of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-exchange

transaction is measured at its fair value at the date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition,

investment properties are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over an -year period

or investment property is measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised through surplus

or deficit.(entity to amend appropriately).lnvestment properties are derecognized either when they

have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and

no future economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is recogrrized in the surplus

or deficit in the period of de-recognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only

when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at revalued figures less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes expendihrre that is directly attributable to the acquisition or

construction of the item of property appropriately according to the acron)ryns you use in your

financial statements plant and equipment. When significant parts ofproperty, plant and equipment

are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is

performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognized in surplus, or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange

transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the enlire risks and benefits incidental to

ownership ofthe leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the

commencement ofthe lease at the fair value ofthe leased property or, if lower, at the present value

ofthe future minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at

the inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future

minimum lease payments at initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments

are apportioned between finance charges and reduction ofthe lease liability to achieve a constant

rate ofinterest on the remaining balance ofthe liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance

costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of
the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the

asset by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over lhe shorter of the estimated useful

life ofthe asset and the lease term. Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all

the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease

payments are recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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Kisii Nrtional Polytechnic
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30th June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange fiansaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following

initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized

development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the

penod in which the expendinre is incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as

either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are assessed for

impairment at each reporting date.

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project ale

recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

) The technical feasibrlity ofcompleting the asset so that the asset will be available for

use or sale.

> Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

> How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

) The availability ofresources to complete the asset.

) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of
expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment

annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

i) Financialinstruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets. The entity does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge

accounting rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements. A financial instrument

is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument ofanother entity. At initial recognition, the entity measures a financial asset or financial

liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at

fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that ale directly attributable to the

acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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Kisii National Polytechnic
Annuel Report and Financial Statements
For the yerr ended 30th Jun€ 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Signilicint Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial assels

Classificotion
The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis ofboth the entity's

management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held

within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A

financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held within the

management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and

selling financial assets and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it is

measured at amortized cost or fair value tkough net assets/ equity unless an entity has made

irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equiry instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments ofprincipal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through

surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is
subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part ofa hedging relationship is recognized in

profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net rssets/ equity
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial

assets, where lhe assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are

measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken

through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and

foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conlinued)

Fair value through surplus or deficit
Financial ass€ts that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equily are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the

assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trrde and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

estimate is made ofdoubtful receivables based on a review ofall outstanding amounts at the year

end.

Impairment

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with

its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The entity

recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each repolting date.

Financial liabilities

ClassiJication
The entity classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial

liabilities measured through profit or loss.

j) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory is

its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,

as follows:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

) Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion

of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding

borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement

cost.
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Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the

eslimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or
distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course ofoperations of lhe Entity.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made ofthe
amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,

for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in
the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

Co nti nge nt liab iI itie s

The Kisii National Polyechnic does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of
any contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occulTence ofone or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control ofthe Kisii National Technic in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected
in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow ofeconomic benefits
or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the
related revenue are recognized in the financial statements ofthe period in which the change occurs.

l) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that meet

the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects ofsocial risks and iii) Address the need ofsociety as

a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit scheme at the

same time that iI recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at

the best estimate ofthe cost (the social benefit payments) that the entity will incur in fulfilling the
present obligations represented by the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

m) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Kisii National Polytechnic creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements

n) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Kisii National Poll,technic recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively.

The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application

is irnpractical.

o) Employee benefits

Retirement benelit plans

The Entity provtdes retirement benefits for its employees and direciors. Defined contribution plans

are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate

entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the

fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee sewice in

the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement

benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable. Defined benefit

plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined

benefit funds are actuanally valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits

identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on

proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments

reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

p) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the

date ofthe transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at

the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting of creditors at

rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized

as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part ofproperty, plant and equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or

constructed and borrowings have been incuned. Capitatization ceases whetl construction of the

asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.
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r) Relrted parties

Kisii National Polytechnic regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exerl

control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

Principal and senior managers.

Notes to the Finsrcirl Statemcnts (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

s) Serviceconcessionarrangements

Kisii National Polytechnic analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters

into in determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements ln

particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the ,nrit} recognizes that

asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The operator must provide together

with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than

'whole-of-life' assets, il controls, though ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any

significant residual interest in the asset at the end of the arangement. Any assets so recognized

are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Enlity also

recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

t) Cish and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at banl, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquid investments with an onginal maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end of the ftnancial year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements,

cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public

officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial

year.

u) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

v) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a sigrrificant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Signilicrnt Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation ofthe Kisii National Polytechnic financial statements in conformity with IPSAS

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,

at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates

could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or

liability affected in furure periods.

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements

were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such

changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential fuh:re use and value from disposal:

> The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Kisii
National Polyechnic.

F The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

) Availability offunding to replace the asset.

D Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

l9
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Not$ to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Transfers from other Nsfional Government entities

We hsve recognized capitetion recelved of Kshs, 5,000, 4'000' 4,000 for quarters 1'2 and 3
rcapectively. The gov€rnment lvts supposed to remit Kshs 7,500 per trrinee per qurrter snd
qurrter 4 capltrtion wts never disbursed and due to uncertsinty of belng disbursed it hos

not been recognized in the books.
** The revenue of Kshs 1,551,900 relates to receivables from the Nadonal Youth Servlces

for 21 tralnees in session in quarter 3 and 4.

(r)Trsnsfers from other Government entities (Categorized)

Unconditionrl Grrnts
3 5 8,125,000174,802,000Capitation Grants

1,551,900Operational Grant

Other Grants
358,125,000176,353,900Totel uncoDditlonrl Grsnts

Conditional Grrnls smortized/ rccognlzed ln
nevcnuG

52,150,776Tuition Block Crant

410,275,716176,353,900Totgl Government Grants end Subsidles

4t0,2'1s,776174,802,000State Depar$nent
ofEducation 174,802,000

l,551,900Ministry of Youth
and Gender
Affairs

1 ,5 5 1,900

41o,215,7'16r76353,900
Tot l

r763s3,900
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Noter to the Financial Statements (Continued)

7. Rendering of s€rviccs

39,255,000Activity fees
39,255,000Insurance attachment/Medical
49,134,r75Electricity water and conservancy
39,058,72sLocal nansport and travel

150,739,200Personal emoluments
19,638,000Repairs maintenance and Improvement

319,2s6,0588,640,720Tuition fees

Application fees

Student ID
146,151,065Accrued income

Examination fees

465,407,123t45,120,,820Totel Revenue from The Rendering of
Services

Erch tralnee ls expected to pry Kshs 26,420 per year as school fees' Rendering of services

has been rccrued based on the number of treinees per quarter snd cumulated to arrive rt
the totd rendering of servlces. Renderhg of services recelvsbles have been factored ln
student debtors.

t. Sale of goods

Sale of goods rehtes to rev€nue collected from different production units as per the revenue

schedules

Sale of Books

Sale of Publications
Sale of Farm Produce

782,975Cafeteria sales
t7,1t5,4737,679,262Production units revenue

17,898,448Total Revenue from Sele of Goods 7,679,262
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

9, Rentrl revenue from facilities and equlpment

Rental rev€nue rclates to revenue generrted from leasing ofstalls and revenue collected from

hire Polytechnlc fgcilities.

10. Other lncomes

The other rev€nues are as described above.

I,l19,000497,350Hire of Facilities and Equipment
84,000Contingent Rentals

418,759Operating Lease Revenue
1,203,000916,109Totrl

1,000Sale oftender
I17,085 66,055Fines and penalties

9,640,0107,861,900Registration/Application fee
325,300t 80,500Student ID

12,884,43213,592,2s0Shrdent council
3,414,260Administrative fees

26,000Craduation fees
206,000Research and innovation

2,925,r60Boarding fees
26,3tt,03724,908,895Totrl
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Notes to the Flnancial Statements (Continued)

11. Use of goods

12. Employee relrted costs

49,102,232 67,453,932Teaching and leaming materials
4,766,072l l,878,646Industrial attachment costs
7,344,394I 1,557,026Electricity water and consewancy

44,732,70858,816,077Administrative expenses
1,367,010Medical expenses

16,852,260Security and cleaning services
l5,l l8,l6lStudent council I,144,221
58,485,660Examination fees
t8,972,232237,026Catering, conferences and delegations
30,819,58626,042,t32l,ocal Travel, Transport and Accommodation

5,901,690Motor vehicle operations
1,296,2453,496,784Insurance
8,908,9928,471,357Production unit expenses

2,642,016 2,755,414Intemet expenses
2t,904,9t8 22,t07 ,334Workshop/practical materials expenses
6,5t7,76t 7,851,000Activity exDenses

7,459,5999,434,079Research and lnnovation
226,100 221,100Student ID expenses

2l,000125,500Institution mentoring
2t,282,717Repairs and maintenance

7,364,439454,1l0Graduation expenses
18,000Caution money
67,500Refunds

351,r67,Ms219,049,9t3Totd good end cervlces

83,855,009 107,229,s35Salaries and wages

9,149,076Employee related costs - contributions to
pensions and medical aids

6,744,350Staff Honoraria and facilitations
8,167,860PAYE
3,139,800NHIF
7,285,680NSSF
t,377,872HELB

l1,018,M0SACCO
513,575Kudhehia Union
960,500Welfare
38E,026Terminal employee benefi ts
720,100Casual wages

Nita levy r 55,800
116J78,6r1124,326,612Employee Costs
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Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued

Employees relrted costs include PAYE, NHIF, NSSF' SACCO, HELB, Welfare deductions

from employees' selaries

13. Couacil erpenses

14. Depreciatlon rnd emortizadon

The ascets of the Polytechnic hrve been deprecleted on a quarterly bgsis and rccumulrted
rt the end of the year. Buildings, motor vehicles, furnlture rtrd fittltrgs, computers tnd pl.nt
eqoipment end machinery have been depreciated at a rate of 2.57o, 25o/o, end 12.5c/o,30/o
md 12.Seh respectively.

Not6 to the Financlal Strtements (Continued)

15. Grents end subsldies

720,000430,000Chairman's Honoraria

6,924,2866,423,360Directors Emoluments

1,A4,2866,Es3360Totrl

14,057,72444,996,t62Property, plant and equipment
2,479,332lotangible assets

lnvestment proDefi carried at cost

47,475,494 14,057,724Total depreciation and rmortizetion

65,114,166Mcntee lnstitutions
65,114,166Totel qrants and subsidies

37s,820Bank charges 156,774

16. Flnance costs
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Repelrs end Meintenence

ft. ContractedServices

These relrtcs to outsourced services from suppliers.

19. Cesh end Cash Equivalents

The cesh and cash equivelents balances have been strted st cashbook balances

375,t20Total fianc6 costs 136,774

136,279,052Property

Investment property - eaming rentals

699,950Equipment and machinery

7,010,651Vehicles

Furniture and fittings

Computers and accessories

Totrl Reprirs rnd Maintenance 1,13,989,653

Security services 6,862,767

Cleaning services 5,868,r83
Totrl contncted services t2,730,950

282,912,371s9,230,754Current Account
s9,30,754 2E2,9t237tTotrl Cesh and Cash Equivalents
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Noter to the Financial Statements (Continued)

20. Detrlled Anelysis of Cash and Cash equivalents

Receivables from Exchange trancactions

2l (r) Current Receivables from Exchrnge transactions

a) Current Account
3,302,8444,450,947I t 8l 135699KNP-Kenya Commercial Bank

169,490,92920,853,4620l12001705190013.{P-Cooperative Bank

353,463 2,694,t530l 13901 7051900Cooperative account

79,815,0016,053,0150l139017051901Cooperative account

332,11754,9450t141424762900Borabu- Cooperative account

27,45213,0510lL41424763000Riamo fi I-Cooperative account

1,229,6080l141809820300 8 t 8,958Karao TVC-Cooperative account

6,578,093t6,s75,963r l8l135567Kitutu Masaba TVC-Kenya Commercial
Bank

5,304,6904,349,8611259203727South Mugirango TVC-Kenya
Commercial Bank

5,704,789 13,806,1741259204596
Kimwasi TVC-Kenya Commercial Bark

2E2,581,06139,228,454Sub- Totel
b) Others

2,300 2,310Cash in Hand

329,000Mobile Money account

2,300 331,310Sub- Totrl
282,912,t71s9,210,734Gnnd Totel

Current Receivables

254,738,370 146,15I,065Shrdent Debtors

124,697,307Other Exchange Debtors

270,E48372254,738,370Totrl Current Receivables
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

21 (b) Ageing Anrlyeis of Receivables from Erchange trsnssctions

22(a) Receivables from Non-Exchange transactions

22 @) Ageing Analysis on Receivables from Non-Exchange Trsnsactions

Comparrtlve
7o of the totallo ol the

totrl FY
Current FY

3.8%47.6% 5,689,780Less than I year 121,466,183
39.1o/.49.5% 57,093,534Befween l- 2 years 126,1t8982
31.30/,2.3% 45,837,242Between 2-3 years 6,104,139
25.80/,O.60/o 37,530,509Over 3 years 1,049,065

l007o146,151,065Totrl 254,13t370 lffiVr

Current Recelvebles
I,551,900Transfers from Other Govt. Entities (NYS)

4,640,6804,640,680Other Debtors (Non-Exchange
Transactions)

4,640,6E0Totrl Curretrt Recelv.bles 6,192,5t0

Comparative Y. of
the
totrl

9/o of the totsl
F^Y

Current FY

00
r,551,900

250/.Less than I year

r00%0 4.640,680Between l- 2 years 0
007 5o/oBerween 2-3 years 4,640,680
00 0Over 3 years 0

lO0Vo4,540,6806,192,580 l00o/oTotrl
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

23. Inventorles

lnventories hrve been recognlzed at the lower of cost tnd net realizable value.

112 42075,450Maintenance stores
268,t27Elecfical stores

39,87559,500Cleaning materials
546 5264,0ll,657Catering stores

3,215,191ts,273,367Totgl Inventorles rt lower of
Cost and Net Reallzable Value
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Notes to the Financid St.tementE (Continued)

24. Property, Plent end Equipment

At lJuly 2021 525,000,(xn 7t5,629,513 32,251,721 8,850,540 ll,5ls,mo 107,062,949 1E7,687,6fi 41,171,151 1,700,174,594

Additions 9,304,792
6,104,285 12,642,140 29,9r0,854 54,083,808 tt2,u5,819

Disposals

Revaluation Gain/Loss 814,840,000 ( r03,851,785 ) ( r 8,917,721) (3,240,825) (9,103.640) (84,378,899) 595,347,130

At 30 June 2022 r J39,t40.m0 692,0E2,580 l3J,r0,m0 I I,714,m0 15,053,500 22,6E{,050 217,598,5t4 95,254,959 2407,s67,603

Additions
14,845,928 t't ,515,556 13,142,020 tt,924,640 4,510,150 15s,832;121 217,831,015

Disposals

Transfer/Adj ustments

At 30i Junc 2023 1J39,&r0,m0 706,928,s08 309r5,555 2E,r95,520 23,63E,6ll() 27,191,2Q0 2r7,59E,514 25r,087,6E0 2,625J98,618

Deprcci.tior And
lmprirment
At I July 2021

Depreciation

At 30 Jun 2022

Depreciation Charge for
the Year 23,050,435 't.320.943 3,573,400 't ,044,456 4.006.92'1 44,996,t 62

At 30ft Jun 2023 23,050,435
7,320,94! 3.573.'rc0

7,041,1X 4,00{,927 44,996,t62
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Nct Booh Vdler

At 30tr Jun 2022
1J39,t 3c.000

692,m2,5t0
r33,10,010 r l.7t {.000 15.t53,500 22,6t r,0flt 2t75,18514 95r54,959 2,407 ,yt7 ,603

At 30t Jun 2023
rJ39,140,000 6t3,878,073

23.59,t.613 21,622.t19 16,5921,1t4 23,181.273 217J9t,51,, 2sr,0E7,680 2,5t0,402,456
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Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued)
Veluetion

As per National Treasury guidelines, Land and buildings were identified and valued as per the

National Liabilities and Management Policy and guidelines (Issued June 2020). The assets were

revalued b Morowi Company Limited valuers on 26.09.2023. These amounts were adopted in
the financial statements on 30 J.une 2022.

24 (b) Property, Plant gnd Equipment at Cost

If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the

amounts would be as follows:

25. Intrngible Assets

l,339,840,0001,339,840,000Land

683,878,07323,050,435706,928,508Buildings

4,006,927 23,t87,27327,194,200Plant And Machinery

23,594,6137,320,94330,915,556Motor Vehicles including Motorcycles

16,594,1847,044,45623,638,&0Computers and Related Equipment

3,573,400 24,622,11928,t95,520Office Equipment, Furnitue, And Fittings

2,111,71626244,996,16t2,156,712,424Totrl

28,698,98019,834,656At beginninq of the year
5,193,400Additions

33,892,38019,834,6s6At end of the year
AdditionFintemal development

33,892,38019,834,656At €nd of the year
Amortization and impairment

4,110,531At beginning of the year
2,479,332Amortization

4,1I0,5312,479,332At end of the yeer
14,057,724Impairment loss
19,834,656t7,3s5,324At end of the year
19,834,65617,333,324NBV
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Notes to the Finencial Statements (Continued)

26. Biological Assets

27. Trade end Other Ply.bles

Accrued payroll deduction relates to employees deductions which had not been remitted
ss rt the 30.06.2023

594,500
594,500Cattle

594,500
Totrl 594,500

Trade payables
1t,075,262 7,718,599

124,697,3t0Du€ to mentee institutions 124,697,3t0

3,666,47s
Accrued payroll deductions

Examination fees
t5,427,67 t

1,860,000
Ministry monitoring and
evaluation

156,726,118 132,413,909
Total Trade and Other
Pryables

Comprretive
FY

7o of the
TotrlAgeing anslysis: Current FY 7o of the Totd

132.4t5.909 100%Under one year 32,029,408 20o/o

0 0l -2 years 124,69'7,310 8oo/o

02-3 years 0 0 0
Over 3 years 0 0 0 0

1000/"
Totrl (to tie to totrls
above)

1s6,726,718 1000/" r32,415,909

)L



Kisii National Polytechnic
Annual Report end Financial Statements
For the year ended 30th June 2023

I

-Notes to the Finsnciel Strtements (Continued)

2t. Refundsble Deposits from Customers

Mentee institutions refer to monles held by the polytechnic for mentoring
lnsdtutions.
Other refundrble deposits relate to retentlon monles held from the ongoing
constructlon works.

29. Employee Benelit Obligatlons

The entity also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a

defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. The entity's

obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time

and is currently at Kshs. 1,080 per employee per month.

30, Payments received in advrnce.

This related to fees paid in advance as I result of student rec€ipts and government
crpitation

Mentee institutions
27,462,622

9,025,023Other refundable deposits
(Retention monies) 26,765,604

9,025,023Totrl Depositi
54,228,226

202t-2022 9/" of the Totrl7o of the TotrlAgeing anrlysis: 2022-2023

l00o/o9,025,023Under one year 54,228,226 to0%

9,025,023 lO0YoTotal (to tie to totsls d€poslts
above)

54,228,226 100v"

48,683,33447,044,448Advance fee payments
48,6t3,334Totel Deferred Income 47,044,44E
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-Notes to the Flnancial Statements (Continued)

31. Cash generated from operations

32. Finenclal Risk Menagement

The entity's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risk including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign curency. The company's overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable

levels ofrisk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit rlsk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a coutrterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by
the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current

economic environment.

996,158 353,493,245usted for:
14,057,72449447 475

Depreciation

Working Cepital Adjustments
( 12,058,176) (t2,295,633)

Increase in lnventory

108.021.358(l10,139,205)
Increase in Receivables

(263,314)67,875,126Increase in Payables
463,013,4t0(5,rs0,503)

Net Cesh Flow from Operating Activitles
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-Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the

entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value ofany collateral

obtained is made up as follows:

Fingnclsl rlsk management (contlnued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The entity has significant concentration ofcredit risk oD amounts due from xxxx

The board of directors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects ofcredit risk management are operated.

(ii) Llquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity's directors, who have

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the entity's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity
manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring offorecasts and actual cash flows.

At 30 June 2022

l46,l5 r,065Receivables from exchange transactions
146, r 5l,065

Receivables fr om non-exchan ge

transactions

282,9t2,371282,9t2,371
Banl balances

429.063,4t5 429,063,436Totd

At 30 June 202023

254,738,370254,73E,370
Receivables from exchange fiansactions

6,192,580 6,192,580
Receivables from non-exchange
transactions

59,230,75459,230,754
Bank balances

320,161,7MTotsl 320,16t,704

I
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The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contrachral undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal

their carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2022

132,415,909 t32,415,909Trade Payables

48,683,334
Deferred Income

132.415,909
Totrl tEt,099,243
At 30 June 2023

32,029,40832,029,408Trade Payables

47,044,448Deferred lncome
47,044,448

79,073,E56Totrl
79,073,856
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Financial risk management (continued)

(iii) Mrrket risk

The entity has put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which wilt affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The entity's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no chaage to the entity's exposure to market risk or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Notes to the Finrncial Stetements (Continued)
Flnancial risk management (continued)

iii) Capital Risk Mrnagement

The objective ofthe entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the entity's ability to
continue as a going concem. The entity capital structure comprises ofthe following funds:

l,834,308,762l.786,833,268Revaluation Reserve

897,796,2s3 840,483,038Retained Eamings
r24,697,310Capital Reserve t24,697,310

2,799,4t9,1r02,809J26,831Totel Funds

Total Borrowings

l-ess: Cash and Bank Balances
Net Debt{Excess Cash and Cash
Equivalents)

Gearins
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-Notes to the Finrncirl St.tcments (Continued)

33. Related Party Balances

Ngture of related party relatlonohips

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have ability to exercise

control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related
parties include management person[el, their associates and close family members.

Govcrnment of Kony.

The Covemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the Kisii national Polytechnic,
holding I00% of lhe entity's equity interest. The Govemment of Kenya has provided full
guarantees to all long-term lenders of the entity, both domestic and extemal. Other related
parties include:

i) The National Govemment;
ii) The Ministry of Education;
iii) Key management;
iv) The Goveming Council;

t1. Events After the Reportlng Perlod

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

35. Ultimrte And Holding Entity

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under the
Ministry of Education. Its ultimate parent is the Govemment of Kenya.

36. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) and the values are
rounded offto the nearest shilling.
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20. Appendices

Appendix I : Implementation Status of Auditor4enerel Recommcndrtions

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor.

I Staff Ethnic Composition

The institution was first established as

a community college and recruited

employees from the commrmity

especially the lower cadre .When the

instihtion was taken over as a public

it began to employ workers though

competitive recruiEnent which has

seen the number of other ethnicity

employees rise fiom I -E.

Resolved All future recruinnents

2
Slow Implementation of
projects in Mentee
institutions-Kitutu Masaba

After lsr interim payment was made

the contractor reported increase of
prices and requested review of terms

or mutual termination during a site

Not resolved

39



Kisii Netionel Polytechnic
Annurl Report rnd Finrncirl Strterrctrts
For th€ r ended 30th June 2023

meeting. The matter is yet to be solved

as official communication from the

conhactor is yet to be done in writing.

2.2
Kitutu Chache South
Project

The delay in completion was caused

by delay of disbursement of funds

from the ministry.

Not resolved

2.3 South Mugirango Project

The delay in completion was caused

by delay of disbursement of funds

from the ministry.

Not Resolved

3.2 Procurement Procedures

The Polyechnic will endeavour to

always ensure that all the acquired

goods and services towards any

Repairs and Maintenance are obtained

from registered and prequalified

suppliers in accordance with the law.

Contract Agreements and Quotatrons

Resolved l"r Sep 2023

!
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will be prepared and there after l,ocal

Purchase/Service Orders prepared for

delivery of goods and services and to

support the paynent process.

4.0
Recoverability of
receivables from
Exchange Transactions

The management has taken the
following measures as for long
outstanding receivables:
A list of trainees who have fee
balances has been prepared
and the students plus their
guardians have been contacted
to pay up and clear pending
balances

A limit of 48.2% has been set
in the ERP system to bar
trainees who haven't met the
minimum thresh hold from
downloading end term report
forms and nor report online to
access polytechnic services.

Resolved l'r Sep 2023
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Trainees have been divided in
the system in small cohorts per
class to ease monetary.
Heads of departments have
been requested through a

memo (attached) to ensure that
they attend to bonafide
trainees only.
Charged Fees adhenng to
govemment rates has been
communicated using a fees

stricture placed in the
polytechnic website.
Trainees who have cleared
fees will be the only ones
allowed to download
examination pass cards with a

QR code security feature.

Further, the management is in
the process of reviewing the
finance policy to address
treatment of bad debts.
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Budgetary Control And
Performance

The variance ofbudget utilisation
was as a result ofincreased number
of students enrolment beating the
previous trend affected by the Covid
l9 pandemic

Resolved

Weaknesses in The ERP
System

The Overall System Administrator
actrvities shall be logged and the logs
protected and regularly reviewed.
User requests for activities outside
the Overall System Administrator
responsibilities shall be recorded in
th€ user support request form.
(Submitted by the relevant HOD)
For support services the System
Administrator shall use the Training
Database to demonstate any issue
raised by system users. This will
leave all live system transactions to
be performed by users who have been
authonzed to perform them.

Resolved L't May 2022
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(i)

(ii)

Guidence Noles:

(iii)

Use the same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report;

Obtain the "Issue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final extemal audit report that is signed by
Management;

Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons within your entity responsible for
implementation of each issue;

Indicate the status of "Resolved" or'Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to National Treasury.(iv)

Neme Tom Wenjde Muleti
Accounting Officer
Chief PrincirUSccretary Governing Council
Dete 2210212024

I
1l
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Appendix II: Projects Implemented by Kisii National Polytechnic

Proiects

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise lhe status ofproject completion at the end ofeach quarter, i.e. total costs incurred, stage which the projecl is etc)

2

I New Tuition
Block

254,287,300 155,832,721 09/1212024 254,287,300 155,832,721 A in A- Fees from
sfiidents

2

3
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Appendir III- Inter-Entity Confirmetion Letter

KISII NATIONAL POLYTECHNIC
Tel 07 0Ol 52177 I 07 52031300
Email: info@kisiipoly.ac.ke
Website: www.kisiipoly.ac.ke

P.O. Box 222 - 40200
Tel: 058-20319558
KISII . KENYA

The [insert SC/SAGA/Fund name here/ wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30s June 20xx as indicated in the table below. please
compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp this
request in the space provided and retum it to us.

a

t-l
)'{-

Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SAGA/Fund] (Kshs) as at 30th
June 2023

Reference Number Date
Disbursed

Recurrent

A

Development

B C

Inter-
Ministerial

Total

D A+B+C

Amount
Received by
IBeneficiary
Entityl
(Kshs) as at 30th

lt:lre 2022
(E)

Differences
(Kshs)

(F):(D-E)

sF I 4990B7B88499A58809E4 2511012022 54,210,000 54,210 000
SFI4D47BC4DFF76F85FE 2610v2023 60,296,000 60,296 000
s0/923622 27tffit2023 60,296om 60 296,000
Total 410,275,776 235 473,776)

ln confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

O7 eazI.....................Dete ...?.?

Head of Accountlnts depertment of beneliciary Entity:

Nrme.... SCa.
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Appendix IV: Reporting of Climrte Relevant Expenditures
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Apperdir V: Reporffng on Disretcr Mrnagcnent Erpeiditure

Programme Sub-
programme

Disaster
Typ"

Category ofdisaster related Activity that
require expenditure reporting

very/mitigatior/preparedness)(response/reco

Expenditure
item

Amount
(Kshs.)

Comments
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